
CITY OF BRUNSWICK 
601 Gloucester Street * Post Office Box 550 * Brunswick * Georgia * 31520-0550 * (912) 267-5500 * Fax (912) 267-5549 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor   City Attorney 
Felicia M. Harris, Mayor Pro Tem     Brian D. Corry 
Lance Sabbe, Commissioner 
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner              City Manager 
Gwen Atkinson-Williams, Commissioner   Regina M. McDuffie 

AGENDA 
*** 

BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED COMMISSION MEETING 

WEDNESDAY, MARCH 6, 2024 AT 6:00 P.M. 
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 

CALL TO ORDER **INVOCATION **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of March 6, 2024 Regular Meeting Agenda.
PUBLIC COMMENT(S)  
RECOGNITION(S), PRESENTATION(S), & AWARD(S)
2. Proclamation Presentation to Chelsea Parker, Program Director for Safe Harbor Zach’s Place, 
Recognizing March 17th – March 23rd as National Safe Place Week.  (Encl. 1)
3. Presentation by Members of the Brunswick Tree Board Regarding Projects and Initiatives.  (Encl. 2) 
PUBLIC HEARING – NEW ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE(S) (A. Brown) 
4. 

New Alcohol License(s) 
Newcastle Wine Owner: Brandon Boudreau 1328 Newcastle St. Wine Specialty License 

ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
5. Approval of February 21, 2024 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary charges.)

(N. Atkinson)  (Encl. 3)
6. Consider Approval of Alcohol License Renewal for Cool on Cool, LLC.  (A. Brown) 
7. Consider Approval of Financial Reports as of January 31, 2024.  (R. McDuffie)  (Encl. 4)
8. Consider Approval of Resolution No. 2024-03 – Regarding the Full Expansion of Health Insurance 

Coverage as Provided by the Affordable Care Act.  (R. McDuffie)  (Encl. 5)
9. Consider Approval of the Agreement with Tyler Athletic Fields for $700,000 for Howard Coffin 

Park Athletic Field Improvements.  (G. Alberson)  (Encl. 6)
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


Page 2 
March 6, 2024 
Brunswick City Commission Agenda 

“Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or 
who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Coordinator Rick 
Charnock at 912-267-5572 or email rcharnock@cityofbrunswick-ga.gov .  Please give at least 48 hours’ notice to allow the City to make 
reasonable accommodations for those persons(s).” 

mailto:rcharnock@cityofbrunswick-ga.gov


Mayor and City Council of 

Brunswick, Georgia 

Proclamation 

WHEREAS,   young people face troubling issues in today’s world, such as abuse, neglect, 
bullying and serious family matters; and 

WHEREAS,  youth need a safe haven from various negative influences; along with readily 
available resources to assist them when faced with circumstances that 
compromise their safety; and 

WHEREAS,  Safe Place is committed to providing opportunities for safety to all youth not only 
in Brunswick, but throughout the nation.  This is done by ensuring an effective 
system of response for youth in crisis through public and private partnerships at a 
local, state and national level; and  

WHEREAS,  since the program inception in 1983, Safe Place has helped more than 359,000 
youth and currently serves more than 1,500 communities across the country. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, Cosby H. Johnson, as Mayor of the City of 
Brunswick, along with my fellow Commissioners, do hereby recognize March 17-23 as 
“"NATIONAL SAFE PLACE WEEK" and call upon the residents of the City of Brunswick 
along with interested groups to promote awareness of, and volunteer involvement in, the Safe 
Place program. 

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and 
caused this seal to be affixed. 

Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor 

Attest: ______________________________ 
   Naomi D. Atkinson, City Clerk 

Date:  March 6, 2024   



 

Subject: Report from the City of Brunswick Tree Board on Completed and 
Upcoming Projects. 

Brief summary of what you will address the Commission on: 

Members of the City’s Tree Board will update the Commission on various efforts 

and projects related to tree preservation in the City. This includes a report and 

results on the recent Arbor Day Celebration and GA Releaf Grant tree giveaway, 

and a brief summary about upcoming projects for this year, including the Georgia 

Forestry Commission’s Technical Assistance Grant the City was recently awarded 

and the Urban Tree Resiliency Plan by The Nature Conservancy (funded by Wells 

Fargo).   

    

Ashby Nix Worley 

Tree Board Member 

 



  

OFFICIAL MINUTES  
BRUNSWICK CITY COMMISSION  
REGULAR SCHEDULED MEETING 
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 21, 2024 

 AT 6:00 P.M.  
1229 NEWCASTLE STREET, 2nd FLOOR 

& 
STREAMED LIVE AT THE BELOW WEB ADDRESS: 

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga 
 
PRESENT:  Honorable Mayor Cosby Johnson, Mayor Pro Tem Felicia Harris, Commissioner  
                      Kendra Rolle (attended meeting virtually), Commissioner Lance Sabbe and  
                       Commissioner Gwen Atkinson-Williams   
CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Johnson - meeting began at 6:01 p.m. 
INVOCATION: Reverend Craig Campbell, Zion Baptist Church 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Recited in unison by all in attendance. 
ADDENDUM TO AGENDA: 

** 
Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to add as item number seven (7) under item(s) to consider for 
approval “Consider Appointment of Planning and Appeals Commission Chairperson”; seconded by 
Commissioner Atkinson-Williams.  Motion passed unanimously. 

** 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
1. Adoption of February 21, 2024 Regular Scheduled Meeting Agenda.  
    Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the above-referenced agenda with the        
    aforementioned addendum, seconded by Commissioner Atkinson-Williams.  Motion passed  
    unanimously. 
UPDATE 
2.  Update on Pinova/Hercules Properties.  (D. Bravo)  
     Mark Johnson, Partner Gilbert Harrell Law Firm briefly addressed the commission regarding the  
     Pinova site and introduced Tim Hassett, Consultant from GeoSyntech, Ron Kurtz, Senior  
     Director of Operations, Andre Montgomery and Adrea Reimer all of whom gave a brief update on  
     progress made on the decommissioning of Pinova site. 
     Following questions and responses the Commission thanked everyone for the updates. 
PUBLIC HEARING – NEW ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE(S) (A. Brown) 
3. 

New Alcohol License(s) 
Hootenanny’s at the Yard Owner: Kelly Hnatt 

Manager: Judd Foster 
1708 Ellis St. 
Brunswick, GA 

On premise consumption 
of beer and Wine.  Sunday 
Sales 

     Mayor Johnson opened the floor for anyone wanting to speak in favor or opposition of the new  
     alcohol license for Hootenanny’s at the Yard. 
     No one came forth to address the commission.  

https://www.facebook.com/citybwkga


2 
 

     Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the new alcohol license for Hootenanny’s at   
     the Yard; seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Harris.  Motion passed unanimously. 
ITEM(S) TO CONSIDER FOR APPROVAL 
4.    Approval of February 7, 2024 Regular Scheduled Meeting Minutes.  (subject to any necessary  
        charges.)  (N. Atkinson)  
       Mayor Pro Tem Harris made a motion to approve the above-referenced minutes; seconded by  
       Commissioner Rolle. Motion passed unanimously. 
5.    Consider Approval of 3210 Glynn Avenue Site Plan Approval. (J. Hunter) 
       *Hal Hall, 106 Talahi Island Lane, addressed the Commission regarding the site plan in regard to  
        traffic i.e. accessing Riverside and Norman Street* 
       Following discussion, questions, and responses: 
       Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to approve the 90% site plan for 3210 Glynn Avenue;  
       seconded by Commissioner Atkinson-Williams. Motion passed unanimously. 
6.    Consider Approval of Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between the City of Brunswick,  
       Glynn County and Jekyll Island for Regional Assistance to Firefighter Grant to the Federal  
       Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).  (M. Hardin) 
       Mayor Pro Tem Harris made a motion to approve the above-referenced Memorandum of  
      Understanding; seconded by Commissioner Rolle.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 7.  Consider Appointment of Planning and Appeals Commission Chairperson.  (J. Hunter) 
      Commissioner Sabbe made a motion to appoint Grace Green as Chairperson for the Planning and 
      Appeals Commission; seconded by Mayor Johnson.  Motion passed by a vote of 4 to 1 with  
      Mayor Pro Tem Harris opposing. 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
There was not an executive session held during this meeting. 

Mayor Pro Tem Harris made a motion to adjourn; seconded by Commissioner Sabbe. Motion passed 
unanimously. 

MEETING ADJOURNED – meeting adjourned at 8:12 p.m. 

 
        /s/Cosby H. Johnson   
        Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor  
Attest: /s/ Naomi D. Atkinson 
            Naomi D. Atkinson 
            City Clerk 













1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-03 

A RESOLUTION TO REQUEST THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY AND GOVERNOR OF 
GEORGIA ACCEPT FEDERAL MEDICAID FUNDING AND IMPLEMENT THE FULL 

EXPANSION OF HEALTH INSURANCE COVERAGE AS PROVIDED BY THE 
AFFORDABLE CARE ACT 

 

WHEREAS, the City Commission of Brunswick, Georgia, represents all the citizens of Brunswick, 
Georgia; and 

WHEREAS, roughly 3,000 people in Glynn county do not have health insurance coverage and 
would be eligible if Georgia accepted federal Medicaid funding to expand coverage; and 

WHEREAS, Georgia’s Medicaid program has very restrictive eligibility criteria that currently   
excludes approximately 500,000 low-income Georgians from receiving comprehensive, affordable 
health insurance coverage to provide for personal well-being and financial stability; and 

WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid would be good for Georgia’s economy – creating 56,000 jobs 
in Georgia each year and boosting the state’s economic output by $6.5 billion by supporting the  
healthcare industry, jobs, and Georgia’s overall economy, dwarfing future projected costs to  
Georgia; and 
 
WHEREAS, Georgians are already paying federal taxes toward expanding Medicaid and state leaders 
have ignored billions of dollars meant to pay for Georgians’ health coverage. The American Rescue 
Plan (ARP) Act passed in March 2021 makes the financial benefit to Georgia even greater. Through 
the increased federal match in the ARP for states that expand Medicaid, Georgia would receive enough 
money to have an excess of approximately $700 million that it could reinvest in the state – no strings 
attached; and 

WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid would give Georgia’s rural communities the lifeline they so 
desperately need. Expanding Medicaid could create 12,000 jobs and $1.3 billion in new economic 
activity in Georgia’s rural communities each year. Rural hospitals in Georgia are struggling because 
they treat so many patients who lack health insurance and cannot afford high out-of-pocket costs. Seven 
rural hospitals have closed since 2013 and more than half of the remaining hospitals are financially 
vulnerable to closure; and  

WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid would help the City of Brunswick thrive. Medicaid expansion 
would increase the number of insured members of our community, improve the financial footing of 
health care providers and hospitals who treat our residents, and bring new economic activity to our 
city. The improved finances of local health care providers and hospitals acts as an economic multiplier, 
creating community-based jobs, and buoying the hospitality, retail, transportation, and real estate 
sectors of our local economy; and 

WHEREAS, expanding Medicaid would help Georgia recover from the Coronavirus pandemic. 
Uninsured adults faced a higher risk of exposure to COVID-19 due to the types of jobs they are more 
likely to hold. Many of these low-wage workers are not offered benefits from their employer but 
worked in essential front-line jobs that kept our community moving during the pandemic. Medicaid 



2 
 

allows Georgians that are sick or have lost their jobs due to the pandemic to receive quality, affordable 
health care coverage they get back on their feet again. Medicaid expansion has been shown to reduce 
insurance-related disparities, creating optimism surrounding the potential impact of the Affordable 
Care Act on the health of the poor.  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Commission of Brunswick, Georgia calls 
upon the General Assembly and the Governor of Georgia to accept Federal Medicaid funds and 
fully expand insurance coverage pursuant to the Affordable Care Act during the next session of 
the General Assembly. 
 

ADOPTED this 6th day of March 2024. 

 

 
 
              
Cosby H. Johnson, Mayor    Felicia M. Harris, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
 
 
              
Kendra L. Rolle, Commissioner   Lance Sabbe, Commissioner 
 
 
 
                    
Gwen Atkinson-Williams, Commissioner      

ATTEST:             
              

 
_____________________________________ 

                                                                                       Naomi D. Atkinson, City Clerk 






















	Agenda
	Encl. 1 - National Safe Place Proclamation
	Encl. 2 - Tree Board update
	Encl. 3 - 2.21.24 minutes
	Encl. 4 - January 2024 Financials
	Encl. 5 - Resolution 2024-03 Medicaid Expansion
	Encl. 6 - Howard Coffin Park Improvements



